

### November 10, 2008 – 10:30 A.M.

Florence City/County Complex, Room 803

- I. Call to Order
  - Approval of 7/01/08 Minutes
  - Distribute/ Review FLATS newsletter
- II. CTC Update
- III. PDCOG Update
- **IV.** SCDOT Update
  - Highway 301 By-Pass
  - Pine Needles Road
  - Other sales tax projects
- V. Old Business
  - Enhancement Project Updates
    - Lucas Street Intersection Gateway
    - Red Doe Plantation
    - Irby Street Gateway

### VI. New Business

- TIP Amendments actions
  - Increase PDRTA (5307) amending to \$173,470
  - Include New Freedom (5317) new funding \$76,000
- Amend By-Laws actions
  - Add Highway Commissioner District 5 to Policy Committee Voting Members
  - Add Darlington County Planning Director to Study Team Members
  - Add City Planning Commission Chair, to Study Team
  - Add SCDOT FLATS Enhancement Coordinator and Landscaping Projects Coordinator to Study Team
- RFQ recommendation and presentation action
- VII. Other Discussion As Needed
- VIII. Adjournment

**Previously Tabled Item** 

By-Laws – Public Advisory Group

#### FLATS POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING July 1, 2008 PROPOSED MINUTES

#### **Voting Members Present:**

Senator Hugh Leatherman Councilman Billy D. Williams Councilman Morris Anderson Commissioner Marvin Stevenson Sherwin Welch

#### **Study Team Members Present:**

Michelle James, SCDOT Tony Edwards, SCDOT Derrell Rice, SCDOT Kevin Sheppard, SCDOT David Burgess, SCDOT Michael Bethea, SCDOT Brenda Perryman, SCDOT Doug Frate, SCDOT Shane Belcher, FHWA

#### Non-Voting Members Present: William Hoge

Janice Baroody Richard Starks

#### **Staff Present:**

Scott Park Debi Matthews Renee Proctor

Senator Leatherman called the meeting to order.

The first item of old business was to approve the minutes from the March 3, 2008 meeting. A motion and  $2^{nd}$  was made to adopt. Carried unanimously.

The next item of old business were updates from SCDOT. Michelle James with SCDOT presented all updates:

- N. Ebenezer Road: Project LET in March. Just completed the clearing and grubbing. Estimated completion is this fall. Project consist of a realignment of two 90 degree curves. This is a safety project.
- South Cashua: Have done the preliminary design, based on a five lane curb and gutter with bike lane. There are approximately 10 each residential and commercial R/O/W impacts. They have a concern that for a 2.7 mile stretch, is this something FLATS wants to pursue further or does FLATS want to put the PE money towards something else. Mr. Hoge explained that impacts means we will have to buy the 10 residential and commercial buildings. Multi-million dollars just for R/O/W impacts. More expense in the R/O/W portion than the actual road project. Ms. James also mentioned we are also up against the issue of a cemetery. SCDOT would never impact a cemetery. Senator Leatherman asked if SCDOT could come up with another plan to improve that traffic and report back to them? Ms. James said they would. Mr. Hoge mentioned that one issue that creates a traffic problem in the three lane section is the multiple turning at any location. Control with traffic control devices. Councilman Williams also mentioned the problem at the corner of Jefferson and Cashua. Extremely difficult and dangerous to turn left off of Jefferson on the Cashua.
- Financials: The balance FLATS is projected to have in 2012 is 3.4 million. The 301 Bypass project is complete and they anticipate about 1 million in savings from it available to spend in FY09. Senator Leatherman asked if the 1 million would be in addition to the 3.4 million. Ms. James concurred that it would, but 1 million would only be available for FY09. The 3.4 million cannot be used until 2012. Senator Leatherman asked if any of these funds could be used towards bonding? Ms. James said she was not sure, but she would find out and report back.

The first item of new business is Enhancement Projects:

- Red Doe has gone through the technical review process with SCDOT. Edits have been made on the application and now SCDOT is looking to attach Federal funds to that project. Moving right along in positive aspect. Senator Leatherman asked if funds for Red Doe were all Federal or if some of it was State. Janice Redd with SCDOT and Shane Belcher with FHWA both confirmed the funds are all federal. Scott Park also confirmed to Senator Leatherman that this grant was an 80/20 match. Red Doe applied for the full grant available for FY08, which was \$118,000 with the Red Rifle Association making the 20% local match through in-kind services.
- Adopt-an-Interchange update for Highway 52 and 95. Mr. Park advised there had been no
  response from any government entity on the local match requirement, but as indicated by
  Councilman Williams, he understands the City is interested in taking on this. Mr. Park advised we
  would need some feedback from the City in regards to this in order to bring this before the Policy
  Committee. Councilman Williams said we needed to get Drew Griffin involved with this. Mr.
  Park said he would do so. Councilman Williams said he will also contact Mr. Griffin. Senator
  Leatherman asked is this money was available if we could come up with the match. Janice Redd
  with SCDOT concurred. Senator Leatherman suggested we go forward with contacting the City.
  Councilman Williams asked who the County Councilman for this area was. Councilman
  Anderson responded Al Bradley. Councilman Williams is going to check with Councilman
  Bradley to see if the County would assist the City with the match.
- FY09 Application Downtown Gateways Enhancement application: The City of Florence has applied for the FY09 funds in the amount of \$118,000. Location is the Northeast corner of S. Irby and Cedar, just south of the main Library. Florence County is donating the site to the City fulfilling a portion of the 20% match and the City will also provide a portion for the match as well. The property from the County is valued at \$56,000 and the City of Florence in-kind will be \$10,000. Brantley Carter with the City of Florence made a short presentation of the City's plans for this corner lot. The City envisions some of the same design elements as the current Downtown Plaza, they have completed. Large canopy trees and walkway with some sort of a design element in the center which could possibly be a water feature, sculpture, a gazebo or some other yet to be determined. It is envisioned to be a downtown gateway or entrance site, which provides high visibility for traffic going by. The City has submitted the application to FLATS. No set design layout has been done, as the City is waiting for the Policy Committee's endorsement Sherwin Welch made a motion to approve and Councilman Anderson 2<sup>nd</sup> the motion. Carried unanimously.

The second item of new business was the Long Range Plan/Transportation Element (Request for Qualification): Mr. Park advised committee that since we have some time between funding opportunities through the FLATS dollars, it's a great time for planning our Long Range Plan. In order to do that we need to have a Request for Qualification sent out to the community to contract for a third party contractor to come in to look at the FLATS area and fulfill the seven tasks under scope of work as outlined in the RFQ. Mr. Park went over each task. A review selection committee would look over all of the proposals that come in, which would be the FLATS staff, all of our stakeholders, including the Pee Dee Cog, the City of Florence, Florence Economic Development and other people that would have a stake in that plan. We would rank these proposals and bring thing back before the Policy Committee for final approval. The Study Team has looked at this RFQ, which includes all of SCDOT and FHWA and have recommended approval to the Policy Committee. Senator Leatherman asked if this would include S. Cashua as a study? Mr. Park concurred that it would. Mr. Hoge advised the committee that this outside consultant will look at options such as do we need to build a new road somewhere or what's the best way to design that bypass to alleviate traffic problems. They will take the funding and look at it 30 years out and project what we can pay for and where we may need innovative funding sources. It is a great way to get a third party look and professionals that look at it at a different perspective and they will come in and hold stakeholder meetings. Senator Leatherman asked if this consultant group would be chosen through an RFP? Mr. Hoge advised they would be chosen through an RFQ. An internal group of about five or six people will grade them, pick top one or two and come back to you for approval, then we will negotiate the Request For Proposal with them on what they would charge to do the things outlined in the RFQ then have a six to nine month time frame to complete them. Senator Leatherman mentioned after we go through the RFQ process, he would strongly urge us to do a full scale RFP. Mr. Hoge assured Senator Leatherman that we will certainly make

sure it is done correctly. We have examples of what other communities have paid so we know what the approximate price range should be. Mr. Hoge also mentioned that the real reason we need approval from the committee, is because we can get 80% funding back from FLATS. County Council has been nice enough to put this in the budget, so when we get this done we send the bill back to SCDOT and can be reimbursed 80%. Sherwin Welch asked if any study has ever been done on Palmetto Street on turn lanes in the LRP. Mr. Hoge advised he was not aware of one, but that's the kind of things by going through an RFQ process and negotiation, we can make sure it gets in the proposal and then stakeholders can provide them questions and input. Mr. Park advised the committee that one of our largest stakeholders has been the Freight community. A lot of their input and suggestions to the LRP is that it would be very helpful for it to be a multimodal plan. We have met with the freight community and we plan to continue meeting with them. Councilman Anderson made a motion to approve and Councilman Williams 2<sup>nd</sup> motion. Carried unanimously.

The third item of new business is dealing with our air quality for the area. Mr. Park advised committee that recently the EPA has lowered our air quality standard for ozone. We were originally at 0.084, now it is at 0.075 and we are bumping up against that number. Our air quality is obviously affected by more people, more cars, and more industry. Our air quality numbers has actually increased over the last three years. From 2005 to 2007 our air quality was 0.079, 0.076, then 0.073. Senator Leatherman asked if Mr. Park had any feel for why we are decreasing. In 2004 or 2005, there was an Early Action Compact that dealt with air quality so it brought a lot of people together in the community to deal with air quality, which could contribute to this. Mr. Park advised that he has some 2002 numbers that are looking at where all of our pollution is coming from and most of it is on road vehicles. Data like that gives us an opportunity to focus our efforts on what to improve. Mr. Hoge advised the committee that the other thing that was significant was that the early portion of last summer was very cool and summer temperatures is another thing that helps drive up the ozone and this probably helped us reach the 0.073 number. However, this year obviously has been warmer and our numbers are back up again so far, so we're not doing as good right now. Mr. Park advised for 2008 in order to keep us in conformity, under these standards, we need to maintain at most a 0.076 reading and so for this year, that is our reading and we cannot go above it. Senator Leatherman asked what would happen if we do. Mr. Park advised we have been presented this Memorandum of Agreement from SCDOT. This MOA is based on if we do not reach those standards, we are considered a non-conformity area. Once we are in non-conformity, we have to go through a process to try to increase our air quality. Mr. Hoge said the specific penalty for being in non-conformity is more in terms in impact on what you do for air quality. If you have a new business that wants to come in or an existing that wants to expand, they have to go to the industry best standards in order to reduce pollution. They will have to spend a lot more money to help insure they are helping clean up the air. If you do get to a certain point in this process, there can be a restriction on your use of federal highway funds and how you allocate those funds. Mr. Park added that in essence what we would have to produce if we are in nonconformity is a vehicle emissions budget that the whole area could not go over. Maeve Mason with DHEC advised committee also that if area is in non-attainment status, you have a year to reach attainment status again. She advised that she had brought with her an MOA for signature today. Mr. Park further explained a brief timeline what would happen over the next few years, then farther out if we are in non-attainment. State DHEC will recommend the boundaries by March of 2009. It may not necessarily be a county boundary, it may coincide with the FLATS boundaries, they are not sure yet. Then the EPA will finalize those boundaries. Then the state is under the obligation to provide a state plan of action by 2013. Mr. Park presented committee with potential solutions to focus on improving air quality. Councilman Anderson asked Mr. Park how the proposed coal plant would affect our air quality. Mr. Park mentioned that the plant is going to be far away from our monitor, so he was not sure if our monitor would pick up the emissions from that plant. Electricity production is a big influence on air quality in Darlington County for some reason and he is still looking into the reason why for that. It's going to influence someone's air quality. Senator Leatherman asked who the MOA was between. Mr. Park stated it was between SCDOT, DHEC and FLATS. Mr. Hoge added, this MOA says that if any area is in non-attainment, since all MPO's are asked to sign this, before another area is faced with this same issue, we will all come together to discuss what can be done to fix this problem. We are not committing any funds. Ms. Mason concurred that Mr. Hoge was correct. Commissioner Stevenson made a motion to approve and Sherwin Welch  $2^{nd}$  the motion. Carried unanimously.

The fourth item of new business is the Public Participation Plan: Mr. Park advised this is a plan of action to let everyone in the public know what we're doing here. It assigns a certain amount of time for public comment on all of our documents, a certain amount of resources to get this done, in addition to identifying our stakeholders. Mr. Hoge added that this plan spells out all the steps we have to do to make sure we adequately reach the public and it meets the SAFETEA-LU requirement that we need to adopt to make sure the public gets adequate notification. Councilman Williams asked that we check into Pee Dee Times advertising for minority outreach. The City uses this in addition to the Morning News. A motion and second was made to approve. Carried unanimously.

The final item of new business was the Public Advisory Group (TPAG) formation: Mr. Park advised as recently passed in the new Bylaws by Policy Committee, it establishes a public committee, which gives additional input to the Policy Committee, as the Study Team gives addition input on technical issues. This being in an effort to expand our community outreach. Each Policy Committee member has the ability to appoint two people; one from a residential standpoint that lives in the FLATS area and one that is more business oriented. These nominations can be sent to staff or if you have them, can be given to us today. Senator Leatherman's concern was that this would prohibit the members from being able to have the benefit of hearing what those public concerns were on an individual basis. Mr. Hoge stated that hopefully this committee would be a way of having the public more involved and more informed prior to the Policy Committee meetings and have that body make recommendations to the Study Team and then you. We would like to try it and if we find it is not beneficial, then we could change it in the future. Senator Leatherman again stated that he feels that we are just creating another layer and then the members are getting the concerns second hand instead of directly from the individual with the concerns. All members were in agreement with Senator Leatherman. However, Councilman Williams said he could understand the possible need for this committee. Sherman Welch made a motion to table this for now and Commissioner Stevenson  $2^{nd}$  motion. Councilman Williams votes no on having this tabled. He feels we need to do everything possible to involve more of the public in these meetings.

The final discussion as needed was a FY2009 calendar: Mr. Park suggested we propose to meet three times a year; October, February and June. The Study Team would meet two weeks prior to each Policy Committee meeting. This would enable us to satisfy all documents and policies including the TIP and the UPWP as required by the state and federal companies and have the documents to them in a timely manner. Councilman Anderson made a motion to meet three times a year in the proposed months, if needed and Sherwin Welch 2<sup>nd</sup> motion. Carried unanimously.

Senator Leatherman asked for an update on Pine Needles. Ms. James from SCDOT stated that the Phase I portion, which is just the bridge, they are anticipating completion by the end of this month. The second phase which is the rest of the bridge and the rest of the widening project is to LET this month. Construction is anticipated to be completed by the summer of 2010.

Sherwin Welch asked if there was any other plan to start any of the other projects that were in the one percent? Ms. James reported on the following projects in the LRP:

- SCDOT is actively working on section one and two of Highway 378. They have a footprint and are going with a five lane section as opposed to the four lane divided. They are in the process of preparing R/O/W plans. They have had the public information meeting. The ball is rolling.
- On the TV road project, they are in the process of negotiating that contract. They have chosen a consultant, Earthtech, who will be doing the preliminary design work.
- For US Highway 76, they have selected a firm, and negotiated the contract. The firm is putting together alternatives. They should be coming before the County Council with typical sections for you to look at and make a decision on what we want to go with there.
- They have split the Pamplico Highway project into four sections. They are anticipating to keep that internal versus consulting it out. Once they get it programmed internally, they'll be able to start preliminary design and start that ball rolling as well.

Preliminary Engineering on all of these project should start within the next two years.

Public comments:

DRAFT

One gentleman asked Ms. James if they had acquired all R/O/W for the Pine Needles project? Ms. James said they modified the scope slightly along S. Ebenezer, so they are extending it right down near that disposal sight. The gentleman asked if they were going to relocate the Kangaroo pumps. Ms. James said they were, and they are working with the utilities, but it is not 100% complete as of yet.

Being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.

#### FLATS FINANCIAL STATEMENT

FLATS FINANCIAL STATEMENT												
COSTI	IN THOUSANE	DS)									Policy	Committee Appr
PIN #	PRIORITY	GUIDESHARE PROJECTS	FY 2006	FY 2007	FY 2008	FY 2009	FY 2010	FY 2011	FY 2012	TIP COST (2007-2012)	REMAINING COST (2013+)	FUNDING
	1	US 301 BYPASS (S OF JEFFERIES CREEK TO NATIONAL CEMETERY RD)	4,147 C	6,000 C	7,353 C					\$13,353		NHS
		OPERATIONAL IMPROVEMENTS										
		DEBT SERVICE *	985	992	1,006	1,003	922	918	915	\$5,756	8,554	
		GUIDESHARE SUBTOTALS	\$5,132	\$6,992	\$8,359	\$1,003	\$922	\$918	\$915	\$19,109	\$8,554	
GUIDESHARE ALLOCATION 2,294			2,294	2,294	2,294	2,294	2,294	2,294	\$13,764			
CARRYOVER AVAILABLE 4,147			5,915	4,676	(1,389)	(98)	1,274	2,650	\$13,028			
BOND PROCEEDS 4,606			3,459						\$3,459			
		GUIDESHARE SUBTOTALS	(5,132)	(6,992)	(8,359)	(1,003)	(922)	(918)	(915)	(\$19,109)	(\$8,554)	
		BALANCE	5,915	4,676	(1,389)	(98)	1,274	2,650	4,029			

PROJECTS EXEMPT FROM GUIDESHARE												
PAVEMENT MARKING, & SIGNING PROJECTS			SEE									
SAFETY PROJECTS (INCLUDES P,R, & C)			SEE									
PAVEMENT PROJECTS			SEE	2007 STIP PRO								
BRIDGE REPLACEMENT & REHAB PROJECTS		SEE 2007 STIP PROGRAM SUMMARIES										
APPROPRIATION EARMARKS	APPROPRIATION EARMARKS					SEE 2007 STIP APPROPRIATION EARMARKS						

SAFETEA-LU EARMARK PROJECTS													
INTERCHANGE AT I-95 AND SC 327 SAFETEA-LU # 3021 *	2,061 **	1,020	1,020	1,020		\$3,060	SPENDING LIMITATION FEDERAL - \$6,000,000 MATCH - \$1,280,190						
PINE NEEDLES ROAD (WIDENING AND BRIDGE REPLACEMENT) SAFETEA-LU # 3078 * ✔	550 **	272	272	272		\$816	SPENDING LIMITATION FEDERAL - \$1,600,000 MATCH - \$341,384						
I-95/SC 327 SAFETEA-LU # 4889 *	1,030 **	510	510	510		\$1,530	SPENDING LIMITATION FEDERAL - \$3,000,000 MATCH - \$640,095						
SAFETEA-LU EARMARK TOTAL	\$3,641	\$1,802	\$1,802	\$1,802		\$5,406							

_		Carryover						
	ENHANCEMENT PROJECTS	(2004-2006)						
	FLATS ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM		117	117	117			STP TOTAL - \$146,856
	RED DOE PLANTATION			-117				STP TOTAL - \$146,856
	ENHANCEMENT SUBTOTALS		\$117	0	\$117			

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION											
PEE DEE REGIONAL TRANS AUTHORITY (CA,OP)	578	987	1,225	1,047	1,079	1,111	1,144	\$6,593		FTA SECTION 5307	
FLORENCE SENIOR CITIZENS ASSOCIATION (PS)			30					\$30		FTA SECTION 5310	
FLORENCE CO DSN BOARD (PS)	30	30						\$30		FTA SECTION 5310	
NEW FREEDOM PROGRAM				76				\$76		FTA SECTION 5317	
FTA SUBTOTALS	\$608	\$1,017	\$1,255	\$1,123	\$1,079	\$1,111	\$1,144	\$6,729			
GRAND TOTAL	\$9,381	\$9,928	\$11,416	\$4,045	\$2,001	\$2,029	\$2,059	\$31,244	\$8,554		

KEY: P - PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING, R - RIGHT OF WAY, C - CONSTRUCTION, CA - CAPITAL PURCHASE, OP - OPERATING, PS - PURCHASE OF SERVICE CONTRACT

\* - FEDERAL AMOUNT SHOWN IS THE MAXIMUM AMOUNT IN SAFETEA-LU THAT MAYBE DISTRIBUTED OVER 5 YEARS (FY 2005-2009). ACTUAL FUNDING CURRENTLY AVAILABLE RESULTING FROM FY 2005 AND 2006 ANNUAL APPROPRIATION ACTS. FY 2007-2009 FUNDING SUBJECT TO FUTURE APPROPRIATION ACTS (PROJECTED AT 85% FOR ESTIMATE PURPOSES)

\*\* - INCLUDES FY 2005 AND FY 2006 SPENDING LIMITATIONS

✓ - MATCH PROVIDED BY A FLORENCE COUNTY CAPITAL PROJECTS SALES TAX REFERENDUM